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Dear                                 , 
 
Request for Information – ATISN 18671 

 
Thank you for your request for information relating to 50 mph zones.   
 
Information requested:- 
 

1. Any internal documents and e-mails, including the policy aims and objectives 
for the 50mph zones on the M4 motorway. 

2. What criteria are used when deciding on such zones.  
3. Readings for air quality taken at each measurement interval in each zone for 

the 3 years prior to the zones being introduced and for each interval since the 
zones were introduced, or else as much data as is available. 

4. The exact date enforcement of the new speed limit began. 
5. What plans/contingencies WG has, if any, if the policy aims and objectives are 

not met 
6. What plans WG has, if any, to restore the national speed limit after the 

widespread adoption of Electric and/or other zero/low emission vehicles.  
 
Our response 
 
Relating to question 1, Section 12 of the Freedom of Information Act allows the Welsh 
Government to refuse a request for general information in circumstances where it 
estimates that it would exceed the “appropriate limit” to either comply with the request 
in its entirety or, confirm or deny whether the requested information is held. 
 
The appropriate limit is currently set at £600 for the Welsh Government, which is 
calculated on the basis of one member of staff taking more than 24 hours to comply 
with the request. 
 
A search on our system revealed that there were over 5000 ‘hits’ when we entered the 
phrase 50mph air quality.  We would then have to extract the relevant information, it 
would take one official well in excess of 24hrs to complete the exercise. 
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I have therefore concluded that it will cost more than the appropriate limit set out in the 
Freedom of Information and Data Protection (Appropriate Limit and Fees) Regulations 
2004 to deal with that part of your request. I have therefore decided to refuse that part 
under Section 12 of the FoIA as to comply with it would exceed the appropriate limit. 
 
However, I can advise that we have published many reports linked to your question. 
This can be found in the following link and further information links at the bottom of the 
page 50mph speed limits to reduce pollution | GOV.WALES 
 
For Q2, the criteria used for deciding such zones is summarised in the Air Quality Plan 
Air quality plan: roadside nitrogen dioxide | GOV.WALES and the rationale is also 
contained in the WelTAG Stage 3 reports. 
 
For Q3, Air quality data is available on our website in the Air Quality Plan and also 
here:- 
 
Interim data on NO2 concentrations for the motorway and trunk road | GOV.WALES 
Annual data on NO2 concentrations for the motorway and trunk road: 2018 to 2019 | 
GOV.WALES 
Annual data on NO2 concentrations for the motorway and trunk road: 2020 to 2021 | 
GOV.WALES 
 
For Q4, average speed enforcement cameras went live across junctions 24-28 in mid-
March 2021. Enforcement then commenced 17th November 2022 in Newport. 
 
At the other locations average speed cameras went live mid-September 2019, and 
enforcement via warning letters commenced 4th October 2021 with the letters 
subsequently being withdrawn in April 2022 with the move to full enforcement.  
 
Q5, contingency plans are described in our Air Quality Plan. We can draw attention to 
the relevant sections on our Precautionary Retained Measures. 
 
Q6, The environmental speed limits will stay in place for as long as required to ensure 
long-term, sustained compliance with nitrogen dioxide limit values. 
 
Next steps 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the Welsh Government’s handling of your request, you can 
ask for an internal review within 40 working days of the date of this response.  
Requests for an internal review should be addressed to the Welsh Government’s 
Freedom of Information Officer at: 
 
Information Rights Unit, Welsh Government, Cathays Park, Cardiff, CF10 3NQ  
or Email: Freedom.ofinformation@gov.wales.  Please remember to quote the ATISN 
reference number above.     
 
You also have the right to complain to the Information Commissioner.  The Information 
Commissioner can be contacted at:  Information Commissioner’s Office, Wycliffe 
House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire, SK9 5AF.  However, please note that the 
Commissioner will not normally investigate a complaint until it has been through our 
own internal review process. 

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2F50mph-speed-limits-reduce-pollution&data=05%7C01%7CAndrew.Carter%40gov.wales%7C48a701aaf8ee4455888108db7ef62a35%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638243367946859416%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=e70ITCbp1YQ2y97i8u%2Bdm5PH4Vre0nY6MQj7e8nZ5ZI%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fair-quality-plan&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7C77f3d4d6c4194641fac708db7c7b1b68%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638240640397867885%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xBrnVAtL49VI0mGhr1ZX6iw1mh%2FB8nD0WqV79xwmQiA%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Ftackling-roadside-nitrogen-dioxide-concentrations-wales-weltag-stage-3&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=oEK8HAHIn%2B%2FIdbU%2BAoM9GxYd3CSuHIpNkMv%2BdgvEubk%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Finterim-data-no2-concentrations-motorway-and-trunk-road&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=UvWYlJwIHluh4CW2PQTp%2F%2F7g%2FxxEGwGVvOTutjfFH14%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fannual-data-no2-concentrations-motorway-and-trunk-road-2018-2019%3F_ga%3D2.176366373.1489399353.1690176174-1393632938.1670185934%26_gl%3D1*97ey5i*_ga*MTM5MzYzMjkzOC4xNjcwMTg1OTM0*_ga_L1471V4N02*MTY5MDUyMTIzNi4xODkuMS4xNjkwNTIyNzE2LjAuMC4w&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DTGByj%2FB0567TRHMCDcYW9FqEQefuNZ6L7krRNadUo4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fannual-data-no2-concentrations-motorway-and-trunk-road-2018-2019%3F_ga%3D2.176366373.1489399353.1690176174-1393632938.1670185934%26_gl%3D1*97ey5i*_ga*MTM5MzYzMjkzOC4xNjcwMTg1OTM0*_ga_L1471V4N02*MTY5MDUyMTIzNi4xODkuMS4xNjkwNTIyNzE2LjAuMC4w&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=DTGByj%2FB0567TRHMCDcYW9FqEQefuNZ6L7krRNadUo4%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fannual-data-no2-concentrations-motorway-and-trunk-road-2020-2021&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=D5mA88gQJ63y3THjl65sBclpL8FWqrzAv6UimXV86rg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fannual-data-no2-concentrations-motorway-and-trunk-road-2020-2021&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=D5mA88gQJ63y3THjl65sBclpL8FWqrzAv6UimXV86rg%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2F50mph-average-speed-cameras-outside-newport-go-live-two-weeks&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=f%2BSNjARpN1ZzqD4TXViH7rC7WFMSuVHHqsEkmkPB4TM%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2Fenforcement-m4-50mph-scheme-starts-today&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=w%2Blm0cS5mTTHD1avpizO8xB%2F04zXZOo20SS1NhcVlLQ%3D&reserved=0
https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.gov.wales%2F50mph-schemes-successful-driving-down-air-pollution&data=05%7C01%7CTrystan.Evans%40gov.wales%7Ca237b250c8514918d45208db8f2e8e94%7Ca2cc36c592804ae78887d06dab89216b%7C0%7C0%7C638261202343976774%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=QgV24%2B6NfrGU22LdtS%2BMGbVVfcVRPIZke9qfMLCWaAI%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Freedom.ofinformation@gov.wales


 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Uned Busnes y Llywodraeth / Government Business Unit  
Llywodraeth Cymru / Welsh Government 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


